
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

Tuesday, 20th February, 2018, 6.30 pm - The Londesborough Room, 
Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green, London N22 
 
Members: Councillors Mark Blake, Clare Bull, Adam Jogee, Stephen Mann, 
Peter Mitchell, Ali Gul Ozbek, James Patterson and Viv Ross 

 
Co-optees/Non-Voting Members: David Frith (The Rookfield Association), 
Jane Hutchinson (Alexandra Residents Association), Jason Beazley (Three Avenues 
Residents Association (TARA)), Jim Jenks (Warner Estate Residents' Association), 
Duncan Neill (Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association), Ken Ranson (Bounds 
Green & District Residents Association), Elizabeth Richardson (Palace View 
Residents Association) and Kevin Stanfield (Palace Gates Residents Association).  

 
 
Quorum: 6, including not less than three appointed members and nominated 
members from not less than three different residents’ associations. 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

3. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   



 

 
It being a special meeting of the SAC, under Part Four, Section B, Paragraph 
17, of the Council’s Constitution, no other business shall be considered at the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. ALEXANDRA PALACE GARDEN CENTRE PLANNING APPLICATION 
HGY/2018/0394  (PAGES 1 - 56) 
 
To inform and seek the advice of the SAC about the Garden Centre Planning 
Application Refurbishment, improvement and extension of the Garden Centre 
at Alexandra Palace, and the removal of ancillary outbuildings  
 

6. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
TBC 
 

Philip Slawther, Principal Committee Co-ordinator Tel – 020 8489 2957 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: philip.slawther2@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Monday, 19 February 2018 



 
 

    

 
 
 
 

ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE  
MEETING OF THE STATUTORY ADVISORY  

20th February 2018 
 
 
 
Report Title: Alexandra Palace Garden Centre Redevelopment and 

Planning Application 
 
Report of:   Louise Stewart 
 
Report Authorised by:  Louise Stewart, Chief Executive Officer, Alexandra Park and  
    Palace Charitable Trust (APPCT) 
 
 
Contact:  Natalie Layton, Executive Assistant, APPCT 
Email: Natalie.layton@alexandrapalace.com , Telephone: 020 8365 4335 
 
 
Purpose: To seek the advice and views of the Advisory Committee on the plans to 
redevelop the Garden Centre and the related planning application (reference 
HGY/2018/0394). 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

N/A  
 
 
1. Recommendations 
 
1.1 To consider the report and advise the Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust 

Board, as appropriate.  
 

1.2 If the Committee wishes to submit separate comments to the Board. These 
comments should be submitted to the Council’s Planning Department prior to 9th 
March 2018. 

 
 
2.  Reason for the report 
 
2.1  Capital Gardens is the leaseholder of Alexandra Palace Garden Centre. Capital 

Gardens wish to develop the site, to improve the current facilities. They are seeking 
Landlord Consent from the Trust and have submitted a planning application to the 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5

mailto:Natalie.layton@alexandrapalace.com


 
 

Local Planning Authority. They will require both Landlord Consent and Planning 
Permission to proceed. 

 
2.2 The Trust is required to seek the advice of the Advisory Committee on proposals 

which require planning permission.  
 

 
2.3 The Trustee Board will consider granting Landlord’s Consent and its response to 

the Planning Application at its meeting on 20th February 2018, under business.  
This will be an exempt item as it will involve terms of lease negotiations and 
commercial information.   

 
2.4 Colin Campbell-Preston, the owner of Capital Gardens, the leaseholder will make a 

short presentation to the SAC about the redevelopment plans. 
 
2.5 The Planning Application can be viewed on line on the Haringey Council planning 

portal  
 
 http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServl

et?PKID=326755 
 
 The relevant documents are attached at appendix 1. 
 
2.6 Residents Associations and other organisations or individuals are able to submit 

their comments on the Planning Application separate to this process. The deadline 
for those comments is 9th March 2018. 

 
 
3.  Other options considered  
 
3.1 This is a request from a leaseholder in the Park to develop their leasehold property. 

Whilst the Trust has not yet finalised its Strategic Vision work, the work does not 
identify any emerging alternative plans for the leasehold area. Therefore investment 
in the existing facilities to improve the visitor experience and physical appearance is 
generally welcomed. 

 
4. Redevelopment Plans 
 
4.1 The plans are to ‘refurbish, improve and extend the Garden Centre and remove 

ancillary outbuildings’. It is essentially a modernisation and upgrade of the existing 
facilities and an opportunity to consolidate and repurpose buildings for more 
appropriate uses and remove those that are no longer required.  

 
4.2 The consolidation will facilitate improvements to the appearance of the site, which 

will be further enhanced through the creation of a ‘shared design theme’. The 
materials proposed are solid timber, clear glazing, timber frames and timber 
cladding.  

 
4.3 The total floor space of the Garden Centre, on the site, will increase overall by 73 

square metres. There are no plans to increase the size of the leasehold area. 
 

Page 2

http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=326755
http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=326755


 
 

4.4 The plans are deemed to be in line with local planning policy. 
 
4.5 There are no fundamental changes proposed to pedestrian, vehicle access or roads 

or rights of way in planning terms. Although there are proposals to improve the 
existing pedestrian access, within the site, to create a wider, more solid and even 
permanent path, to encourage pedestrians off the road and improve on site safety. 

 
4.6 Visitor Parking spaces are proposed to increase from 47 to 55, a total increase of 8 

spaces. There are no increases proposed for disabled bays (currently 2) or cycle 
spaces (currently 6). 

 
4.7 The plans include improved landscaping, improvements to the wildlife area, 

including the planting of wildflowers. The proposals include improvements in the 
sustainable use of resources and carbon reduction measures, detailed in appendix 
1.  

 
4.8 It is anticipated that the works will take place during normal working hours, over 

three years, allowing the Garden centre to remain open. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1  The Council’s Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been 
 consulted in the preparation of this report, and has no comments. 

 
6. Use of Appendices 
 
 Appendix 1 – Planning application documents 
   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

Application for Planning Permission and for relevant demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation area
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Publication of applications on planning authority websites.
Please note that the information provided on this application form and in supporting documents may be published on the Authority’s website.
If you require any further clarification, please contact the Authority’s planning department.

1. Applicant Name, Address and Contact Details

Title: Mr First Name: Colin Surname: Campbell-Preston 

Company name: Capital Gardens 

Street address: Capital Gardens 

Garden Centre Telephone number:  

Alexandra Palace Way Mobile number:  

Town/City: London Fax number:  

Country: UK Email address:

Postcode: N22 7 BB  

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Yes No

2. Agent Name, Address and Contact Details

Title: Mr First Name: Alun Surname: Jones 

Company name: Dow Jones Architects 

Street address: 10 Station Parade 

Balham High Road Telephone number: 02086752544 

 Mobile number:  

Town/City: London Fax number:  

Country: United Kingdom Email address:

Postcode: SW12 9AZ mail@dowjonesarchitects.com 

3. Description of the Proposal

Please provide a description of the proposal, including details of the proposed demolition:

Refurbishment, improvement and extension of the Garden Centre at Alexandra Palace, and the removal of ancillary outbuildings  

Has the building, work or change of use already started? Yes No

Page 5



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

4. Site Address Details

Full postal address of the site (including full postcode where available) Description:

House:  Suffix:  

House name: Garden Centre 

Street address: Alexandra Palace Way 

Wood Green 

 

Town/City: LONDON 

Postcode: N22 7BB 

Description of location or a grid reference
(must be completed if postcode is not known):

Easting: 529391 

Northing: 189713 

 

5. Pre-application Advice

Has assistance or prior advice been sought from the local authority about this application? Yes No

If Yes, please complete the following information about the advice you were given (this will help the authority to deal with this application more efficiently):

Officer name:

Title: Mr First name: Tobias Surname: Finlayson 

Reference: PRE/2016/0298 

Date (DD/MM/YYYY):     (Must be pre-application submission)

Details of the pre-application advice received:

Principle of Development:
The principle of the proposal is considered to be in line with policy and will not impact on the ecological value or the historic interest of the Alexandra
 Palace Park. The proposal would serve to improve the recreational and leisure value of this current facility. The trip generation and parking generated in
 association with this facility is not expected to significantly change

Impact on Metropolitan Open Land (MOL):
The current proposals would upgrade the existing facilities to this long established garden centre can continue to operate. The works here can serve to
 enhance the appearance of the site, to better integrate the buildings into its surroundings and overall will not affect the openness of the Metropolitan
 Open Land.

Siting and Design:
Overall, the works were considered acceptable and sensitive to the site's setting.  

6. Pedestrian and Vehicle Access, Roads and Rights of Way

Is a new or altered vehicle access proposed to or from the public highway? Yes No

Is a new or altered pedestrian access proposed to or from the public highway? Yes No

Are there any new public roads to be provided within the site? Yes No

Are there any new public rights of way to be provided within or adjacent to the site? Yes No

Do the proposals require any diversions/extinguishments and/or creation of rights of way? Yes No

Page 6



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

7. Waste Storage and Collection

Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste? Yes No

Have arrangements been made for the separate storage and collection of recyclable waste? Yes No

8. Authority Employee/Member

With respect to the Authority, I am:
               (a) a member of staff
               (b) an elected member
               (c) related to a member of staff
               (d) related to an elected member

Do any of these statements apply to you? Yes No

9. Explanation for Proposed Demolition Work

Why is it necessary to demolish all or part of the building(s) and/or structure(s)?

The purpose of this project is to refurbish the garden centre and to improve and upgrade facilities. The centre as a whole has become somewhat tired
 and unsightly. There is now a need of an overhaul, and this opportunity is being used to review a number of the facilities, buildings and practices on the
 site, especially in relation to safety and security.

A number of structures are proposed to be removed from site due to them being worn out, ugly or in the wrong position. Others are proposed to be
 refurbished and given a new lease of life. 

The purpose of this is to rationalise how the site is used and therefore exactly what buildings are needed. Those which are not needed will be removed
 and their uses consolidated into fewer, better, more attractive buildings.

The detail of the structures to be removed is included in the design and access statement.

At present the interior retail sales areas of the centre are split between a main building and various separate out buildings. It is proposed to remove the
 separate buildings and consolidate them into the main building. 

Storage of stock is also spread across the site in various sheds and containers, it is proposed to remove all of these and consolidate the storage into one
 new barn-like building.

All the existing buildings and structures are characterized by a jarring difference of appearance with too many contrasting materials and styles. As a
 result there is an overwhelming sense of visual dysfunction. It is proposed to re clad some of the existing buildings with timber boarding so that a sense
 of a shared design theme is achieved across the site. 

This simplification and unifying of the buildings will smarten up the appearance of the whole centre.  

10. Materials

Please state what materials (including type, colour and name) are to be used externally (if applicable):

Doors - description:
Description of existing materials and finishes:

 

Description of proposed materials and finishes:

Solid timber or clear glazing with timber frames 

Roof - description:
Description of existing materials and finishes:

 

Description of proposed materials and finishes:

Timber 

Walls - description:
Description of existing materials and finishes:

 

Description of proposed materials and finishes:

Timber 

Windows - description:

Page 7



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

10. Materials

Description of existing materials and finishes:

 

Description of proposed materials and finishes:

Clear glazing with timber frames 

Are you supplying additional information on submitted plan(s)/drawing(s)/design and access statement? Yes No

If Yes, please state references for the plan(s)/drawing(s)/design and access statement:

Please see page 28 in the design and access statement for material references.  

11. Vehicle Parking

Please provide information on the existing and proposed number of on-site parking spaces:

Type of vehicle
Existing number

of spaces
Total proposed (including spaces

retained)
Difference in

spaces

Cars 47 55 8 

Cycle spaces 6 6 0 

Disability spaces 2 2 0 

12. Foul Sewage

Please state how foul sewage is to be disposed of:

Mains sewer Package treatment plant Unknown

Septic tank Cess pit Other

Are you proposing to connect to the existing drainage system? Yes No Unknown

13. Assessment of Flood Risk

Is the site within an area at risk of flooding? (Refer to the Environment Agency's Flood Map showing
flood zones 2 and 3 and consult Environment Agency standing advice and your local planning authority
requirements for information as necessary.)

If Yes, you will need to submit an appropriate flood risk assessment to consider the risk to the proposed site.

Yes No

Is your proposal within 20 metres of a watercourse (e.g. river, stream or beck)? Yes No

Will the proposal increase the flood risk elsewhere? Yes No

How will surface water be disposed of?

Sustainable drainage system Main sewer Pond/lake

Soakaway Existing watercourse

14. Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

To assist in answering the following questions refer to the guidance notes for further information on when there is a reasonable likelihood that any
important biodiversity or geological conservation features may be present or nearby and whether they are likely to be affected by your proposals.

Having referred to the guidance notes, is there a reasonable likelihood of the following being affected adversely or conserved and enhanced within the
application site, OR on land adjacent to or near the application site:

a) Protected and priority species

Yes, on the development site Yes, on land adjacent to or near the proposed development No

Page 8



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

14. Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

b) Designated sites, important habitats or other biodiversity features

Yes, on the development site Yes, on land adjacent to or near the proposed development No

c) Features of geological conservation importance

Yes, on the development site Yes, on land adjacent to or near the proposed development No

15. Existing Use

Please describe the current use of the site:

The site is currently used as a garden centre. The current use of the site will not be changed by this proposal.  

Is the site currently vacant? Yes No

Does the proposal involve any of the following?
If yes, you will need to submit an appropriate contamination assessment with your application.

Land which is known to be contaminated? Yes No

Land where contamination is suspected for all or part of the site? Yes No

A proposed use that would be particularly vulnerable to the presence of contamination? Yes No

16. Trees and Hedges

Are there trees or hedges on the proposed development site? Yes No

And/or: Are there trees or hedges on land adjacent to the proposed development site that could influence the
development or might be important as part of the local landscape character?

Yes No

If Yes to either or both of the above, you may need to provide a full Tree Survey, at the discretion of your local planning authority. If a Tree Survey is
required, this and the accompanying plan should be submitted alongside your application. Your local planning authority should make clear on its website
what the survey should contain, in accordance with the current 'BS5837: Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations'.

17. Trade Effluent

Does the proposal involve the need to dispose of trade effluents or waste? Yes No

18. Residential Units

Does your proposal include the gain or loss of residential units? Yes No

Market Housing - Proposed

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Proposed Market Housing Total   

Market Housing - Existing

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Existing Market Housing Total   

Page 9



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

18. Residential Units

Social Rented Housing - Proposed

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Proposed Social Housing Total   

Social Rented Housing - Existing

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Existing Social Housing Total   

Intermediate  Housing - Proposed

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Proposed Intermediate Housing Total   

Intermediate Housing - Existing

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Existing Intermediate Housing Total   

Key Worker Housing - Proposed

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Proposed Key Worker Housing Total   

Key Worker Housing - Existing

Number of bedrooms

1 2 3 4+ Unknown

Bedsits/Studios

Cluster Flats

Flats/Maisonettes

Houses

Live-Work Units

Sheltered Housing

Unknown

Existing Key Worker Housing Total  

19. All Types of Development: Non-residential Floorspace

Does your proposal involve the loss, gain or change of use of non-residential floorspace? Yes No

Use Class/type of use

Existing gross
internal

floorspace
(square metres)

Gross internal
floorspace to be
lost by change of
use or demolition
(square metres)

Total gross new
internal floorspace

proposed (including
changes of use)
(square metres)

Net additional
gross internal

floorspace following
development

(square metres)

Other 1,191 270 343 73

Total 1,191 270 343 73

For hotels, residential institutions and hostels, please additionally indicate the loss or gain of rooms:

Use Class/types of use
Existing rooms to be lost by
change of use or demolition

Total rooms proposed
(including changes of use)

Net additional rooms

Page 10



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

20. Employment

If known, please complete the following information regarding employees:

Full-time Part-time Equivalent number of full-time

Existing employees 20

Proposed employees 30

21. Hours of Opening

If known, please state the hours of opening (e.g. 15:30) for each non-residential use proposed:

Use
Monday to Friday

Start Time End Time
Saturday

Start Time End Time
Sunday and Bank Holidays

Start Time End Time
Not Known

Other 09:00:00 18:00:00 09:00:00 18:00:00 10:30:00 16:30:00 

22. Site Area

What is the site area? 9,190.00  sq.metres  

23. Industrial or Commercial Processes and Machinery

Please describe the activities and processes which would be carried out on the site and the end products including plant, ventilation or air conditioning.
Please include the type of machinery which may be installed on site:

  

Is the proposal for a waste management development? Yes No

If this is a landfill application you will need to provide further information before your application can be determined. Your waste planning authority should
make clear what information it requires on its website.

24. Hazardous Substances

Is any hazardous waste involved in the proposal? Yes No

A. Toxic substances Amount held on site

  Tonne(s)

B. Highly reactive/explosive substances Amount held on site

  Tonne(s)

C. Flammable substances (unless specifically named in parts A and B) Amount held on site

  Tonne(s)

25. Site Visit

Can the site be seen from a public road, public footpath, bridleway or other public land? Yes No

If the planning authority needs to make an appointment to carry out a site visit, whom should they contact? (Please select only one)

The agent The applicant Other person

Page 11



Planning Portal Reference : PP-06635845

26. Certificates (Certificate A)

Certificate of Ownership - Certificate A
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 Certificate under Article 14

I certify/The applicant certifies that on the day 21 days before the date of this application nobody except myself/the applicant was the owner (owner is a person with a
freehold interest or leasehold interest with at least 7 years left to run) of any part of the land to which the application relates, and that none of the land to which the application
relates is, or is part of, an agricultural holding (“agricultural holding” has the meaning given by reference to the definition of “agricultural tenant” in section 65(8) of the Act).

Title: Mr First name: Colin Surname: Campbell-Preston 

Person role: APPLICANT Declaration date: 15/01/2018 Declaration made

27. Declaration

I/we hereby apply for planning permission/consent as described in this form and the accompanying plans/
drawings and additional information. I/we confirm that, to the best of my/our knowledge, any facts stated are
true and accurate and any opinions given are the genuine opinions of the person(s) giving them.

 

      Date

  

15/01/2018 

Page 12



Alexandra Palace 

Garden Centre

Design & Access Statement

January 2018

Page 13



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement2 3

introduction

introduction

This report proposes a masterplan for the 
refurbishment, improvement and extension of  the 
Garden Centre at Alexandra Palace.

It will describe the overarching ambition for the 
project and then focus on the individual building 
projects that are proposed to achieve this long term 
goal.

 In writing this statement and devising the 
proposals we have had great regard to the existing 
building, as well as the physical, and social charac-
teristics of  the surroundings and relevant planning 
policies.

aerial view of alexandra Palace garden centre

proposal context 

Alexandra Palace Garden Centre is located within 
the London Borough of  Haringey. The site is 
within the Alexandra Palace and Park conservation 
area. The site is within the grade II listed Alexandra 
Park. The site is on Metropolitan open land and 
bounded partly by a Borough Grade 1 Ecologically 
Valuable Site and partly by a Local Ecologically 
Valuable Site.

The current use of  the site will not be effected by 
this masterplan or the building projects it proposes.

Capital Gardens who operate the centre are seek-
ing to reflect the exciting development at the Palace 
itself  by bringing the infrastructure of  the garden 
centre up to new 21st century standards.  

Location plan

Ambition

The purpose of  this project is to refurbish the 
garden centre and to improve and upgrade facilities. 
The centre as a whole has become somewhat tired 
and unsightly. There is now a need of  an overhaul, 
and this opportunity is being used to review a num-
ber of  the facilities, buildings and practices on the 
site, especially in relation to safety and security. 

Some of  the proposals within this document do 
not require planning approval, some do and some 
already have approval but have not yet been imple-
mented. The purpose of  this masterplan is to con-
solidate all of  these issues into one document that 
can be used as a framework for approval with the 
local authority, freeholder and the Alexandra Palace 
management organisation.

sustainability

A key part of  this project is to carry out a com-
prehensive review of  the carbon footprint of  the 
buildings and the site as a whole. OR Consulting 
Engineers have carried out an appraisal of  the site’s 
energy use and have drawn up a working document 
for how issues concerning sustainability can be 
implemented as a part of  this masterplan.

P
age 14



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement4 5

EXISTING DRAWINGS

existing site plan

Axo sketch of existing

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

13 May 2016
1:200

206-P-003

Planning

Captial Gardens

Elevations - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

section 1

section 2

section 3

section 4

studio building toiletsstudio building toilets

studio building main shoptoilets

studio building covered sales area at entrancestorage containers and skips main shop storage sheds

main shop

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-001

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4

Masterplan

1. existing storage containers - to be removed
2. existing waste skip - to be removed
3. existing storage sheds - to be removed
4. existing wc building - to be refurbished
5. existing studio building - to be refurbished
6. existing covered sales area - to be enclosed
7. existing entrance point - to be removed
8. existing pavilion - to be removed
9. existing covered sales area - to be replaced
10. existing storage sheds - to be replaced
11. existing store - to be replaced

5

6

7

8

9

se
ct

io
n

 1

se
ct

io
n

 2

section 3

se
ct

io
n

 4

10

10

10

11

P
age 15



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement6 7

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

The studio building The view on arriving at the centre

car park looking north to main building and 

alexandra palace

The storage containers to the south of the site

terrace looking north to alexandra palace

SITE HISTORY

HISTORY

Alexandra Palace Garden Centre was originally 
a plant nursery established over 100 years ago. The 
nursery was built within 10 years of  the opening 
of  Alexandra Palace in 1875. Initially there was no 
hard surface access to the nursery.

 At the turn of  the century, a tramway was built 
up to Alexandra Palace which defined the eastern 
edge of  the site. The road Alexandra Palace Way, is 
on the same footprint as the tramway and forms the 
main access to the garden centre. 

The main garden centre buildings were built in 
the 1980’s and then partly re-furbished by Capital 
Gardens in 1998. The garden centre is popular all 
year round and provides a cafe as well as gardening 
supplies.

1880S

1890S

1910S

1950S

Tramway up to alexandra palace 1905

Main entrance

P
age 16



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement8 9

PLANNING HISTORY

21st June 2013

1: 100

206/P01/002 REV_

REV_00.00.00

STATUS: PLANNING

39 Calbourne Road, London, SW12 8LW
T 020 8772 0507
mail@dowjonesarchitect.com
www.dowjonesarchitects.com

CAPITAL GARDENS

Proposal

proposed roof plan

N

green roof

rooflight

proposed ground floor plan

N

proposed long section

proposed north elevation proposed west elevation

proposed east elevation

proposed short section

proposed south elevation

accounts reception buyer buyer office
garden

maintenance
manager

loos and kitchenette
garden

maintenance
manager

accounts

reception buyer buyer office

office office loos and kitchenette

existing brick wall beyond

green roof
rooflight

timber cladding

timber windows

green roof

rooflight to corridor

existing brick wall

lightweight timber frame building sits 
on existing concrete platforms

existing garden wall

office building planning drawings approved

HGY/2014/0555

22/08/2016
PRE/2016/0298

Pre-Application consultation for the proposed 
development. 

Mathew Gunning - Team Leader Development 
Management.

Tobias Finlayson - Planning Officer

This was a positive review of  the proposal, concluding 
that the upgrade of  the existing facilities would improve 
the recreational and leisure value, and would enhance the 
appearance of  the site.

The proposal was then presented to the Alexandra Palace 
Trust in order to align with their strategic vision.

17/04/2014
HGY/2014/0555

Replacement of  existing stores with a new single 
storey timber frame office with green roof  and 
timber cladding.

Full Planning Permission
Grant permission
Case officer: Emma Williamson

 
22/08/2013
PRE/2013/0056

Pre-Application consultation for the replacement 
of  existing stores with a new single storey timber 
frame office with green roof  and timber cladding.

Matthew Gunning – Team Leader Development 
Management. 

This was very positive and led to the granting of  
the approval above.

Presented to the Alexandra Palace Trust and 
Alexandra Palace & Park Conservation Area 
Advisory Committee on October 10th 2013. Formal 
approval for the scheme was granted under the 
minutes of  the Board on October 29th 2013.

20/06/2011
HGY/2011/1161

Erection of  a free-standing structure for selling 
cut flowers.

Grant permission
Case officer: John Ogenga P’Lakop
Reason for grant of  permission:
1. Small footprint

2. Is not visible from the conservation area
3. Proposal to be sited on existing hard standing 

and not a newly concreted area

15/12/1998
HGY/1998/0623

Erection of  extension and refurbishment includ-
ing additional retaining wall, reseeding of  wild life 
area and the removal area, roof  terrace seating, new 
retractable canopy, new cafe and display areas, new 
entrance door, outdoor seating of  a pergola.

Full Planning Permission
Grant permission
Case officer: Dave Laverick

PRE/2016/0298

P
age 17



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement10 11

PROPOSAL

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-001

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4

Masterplan

1. existing storage containers - to be removed
2. existing waste skip - to be removed
3. existing storage sheds - to be removed
4. existing wc building - to be refurbished
5. existing studio building - to be refurbished
6. existing covered sales area - to be enclosed
7. existing entrance point - to be removed
8. existing pavilion - to be removed
9. existing covered sales area - to be replaced
10. existing storage sheds - to be replaced
11. existing store - to be replaced

5

6

7

8

9

se
ct

io
n 

1

se
ct

io
n 

2

section 3

se
ct

io
n 

4

10

10

10

11

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-005

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1 2

3

4

5

6

8

7 9 10

11

14

13

12

Masterplan

1. new waste skip location
2. new storage shed
3. refurbished toilets
4. refurbished studio building
5. revised access to studio
6. wildlife reserve relandscaped
7. new entrance to shop
8. existing sales area enclosed
9. new sales area
10. covered external sales area
11. courtyard
12. new fence to create staff compound
13. new landscape store
14. new offices (planning permission HGY/2014/0555 ) 

se
ct

io
n 

1

se
ct

io
n 

2

section 3x

se
ct

io
n 

4

existing building 

existing building refurbished 

new building 

existing permission 

REMOVAL

A number of  structures are proposed to be re-
moved from site due to them being worn out, ugly 
or in the wrong position.  Others are proposed to be 
refurbished and given a new lease of  life.  

The drawing above shows the buildings, sheds, 
containers and other constructions that will 
be demolished. Those coloured purple will be 
refurbished.

The purpose of  this is to rationalise how the site 
is used and therefore exactly what buildings are 
needed. Those which are not needed will be re-
moved and their uses consolidated into fewer, better, 
more attractive buildings.

The detail of  the structures to be removed is 
overleaf.

Consolidation and new buildings

At present the interior retail sales areas of  the 
centre are split between a main building and various 
separate out buildings. It is proposed to remove the 
separate buildings and consolidate them into the 
main building. 

Storage of  stock is also spread across the site 
in various sheds and containers, it is proposed to 
remove all of  these and consolidate the storage into 
one new barn-like building.

All the existing buildings and structures are 
characterized by a jarring difference of  appearance 
with too many contrasting materials and styles. As 
a result there is an overwhelming sense of  visual 
dysfunction. It is proposed to re clad some of  the 
existing buildings with timber boarding so that a 
sense of  a shared design theme is achieved across 
the site. 

This simplification and unifying of  the buildings 
will smarten up the appearance of  the whole centre.

Extension of existing buildings 

The objective for the centre is to improve facili-
ties and provide a more rural appearance to the site, 
especially the more prominent views within the site 
itself.

Visitor experience will be improved by extending 
the main retail building to allow for the removal of  
the disparate buildings across the site. 

A new covered area off  the main building for 
tender and bedding plants, and an upgrade to the 
main retail area with a new entrance will consolidate 
the appearance of  the site.

Through the simplification and better use of  
buildings it is intended to bring order and more 
sense to the buildings and hence create a better 
‘sense of  place’ to the whole site. 

 

Artist’s impression of the covered sales area

P
age 18



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement12 13

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-001

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4

Masterplan

1. existing storage containers - to be removed
2. existing waste skip - to be removed
3. existing storage sheds - to be removed
4. existing wc building - to be refurbished
5. existing studio building - to be refurbished
6. existing covered sales area - to be enclosed
7. existing entrance point - to be removed
8. existing pavilion - to be removed
9. existing covered sales area - to be replaced
10. existing storage sheds - to be replaced
11. existing store - to be replaced

5

6

7

8

9

se
ct

io
n

 1

se
ct

io
n

 2

section 3

se
ct

io
n

 4

10

10

10

11

PLAN EXISTING

P
age 19



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement14 15

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

02.01.18

1:200

206-P-002

Planning

Captial Gardens

Roof Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

Masterplan

1. existing cafe terrace

se
ct

io
n

 1

se
ct

io
n

 2

section 3

se
ct

io
n

 4

ROOF PLAN EXISTING

P
age 20



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement16 17

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-005

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1 2

3

4

5

6

8

7 9 10

11

14

13

12

Masterplan

1. new waste skip location
2. new storage shed
3. refurbished toilets
4. refurbished studio building
5. revised access to studio
6. wildlife reserve relandscaped
7. new entrance to shop
8. existing sales area enclosed
9. new sales area
10. covered external sales area
11. courtyard
12. new fence to create staff compound
13. new landscape store
14. new offices (planning permission HGY/2014/0555 ) 

se
ct

io
n 

1

se
ct

io
n 

2

section 3x

se
ct

io
n 

4

existing building 

existing building refurbished 

new building 

existing permission 

PLAN PROPOSED

P
age 21



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement18 19

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-006

Planning

Captial Gardens

Roof Plan

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4 5

Masterplan

1. new rooflights to existing shop roof
2. new rooflights to flat roof over newly enclosed sales area
3. existing terrace
4. new extended terrace
5. new pergola roof
6. roof to covered external sales area

6

se
ct

io
n 

1

se
ct

io
n 

2

section 3x

se
ct

io
n 

4

5

existing building 

existing building refurbished 

new building 

existing permission 

ROOF PLAN PROPOSED

P
age 22



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement20 21

THE COMPONENTS

1. New storage barn

The cluster of  existing containers will be removed 
and replaced with a new barn-like timber clad build-
ing that follows the form and building line of  the 
existing studio building. All of  the stock storage will 
be consolidated in this building, tidying up the site 
as a whole.

2. waste skip

This will be relocated to a position behind the 
proposed storage barn so that it is not visible from 
the public areas. The store and the skip will be con-
tained behind a timber clad fence with a gate. New 
flower beds will be created in ‘front’ of  this area.

3. existing wc building

This will be refurbished to continue to provide 
WC facilities for customers. This building will be 
re-clad with timber boarding.

4. existing studio building

This will be remodelled internally and refur-
bished and re-clad externally with timber board-
ing. This building will be used as a studio or small 
retail outlet for a new local business. It will be made 
accessible to the disabled and the landscape imme-
diately in front of  the building will be rearranged to 
improve the setting of  the building.

5. existing covered sales area

The covered area at the entrance to the building 
will be enclosed so that the customer can shop in 
more comfort. This will also allow, along with the 
new entrance, for better arrangement of  tills and 
improved visitor flow. The current columnar struc-
ture will be enclosed with a timber boarded wall and 
clerestory windows, and the current pitched plastic 
roof  will be replaced with a flat roof  with large 
rooflights.

6. entrance point

This will be demolished and replaced by a new 
entrance to the shop and the external sales area. 
This will be achieved by extending the current sin-
gle storey flat roofed structure that will also provide 
an enlarged cafe terrace above. The extension will be 
timber clad to match all of  the new additions on site. 

7. covered sales area

This will be replaced with a new enlarged roof  
structure that will be used to house bedding plants. 
The purpose of  this structure is to keep adverse 
weather off  the stock and to provide an improved 
visitor experience.

The form of  this new roof  is proposed as a saw-
tooth type roof  facing south. The intension is to use 
the pitched sections of  the roof  in part to house PV 
cells to generate power for the building.

8. New staff facilities and office

The storage sheds at the east of  the site will be 
demolished and replaced by the single story office 
building and staff  facilities that were approved in 
2014 by permission 2014/0555.

We are proposing a minor modification to the 
approved design by swapping the staff  area and 
wcs form the east to the west of  the building and 
consequently making a minor modification to the 
appearance of  the glazing to this building.

9. New landscape team store and office

We are proposing to remove the current stock 
store building and to replace it will a small barn-like 
structure that will be used by the Capital Gardens 
Landscape team to use as an office and store.

This compound of  staff  and back of  house ac-
commodation will be screened from the public areas 
by a timber boarded fence.

10. Improved access for pedestrians

A wider, more even, solid and permanent path 
will be made across the wildlife area. This will en-
courage pedestrians to use this rout rather than walk 
along the road. Part of  the hedge of  this area will be 
removed to improve visibility for drivers and create 
the possibility for a new planting bed.

11. New landscaping

We are proposing to revitalise the landscaping of  
the Capital Gardens site to generally improve the 
quality of  the amenity space around the buildings. 
The wildlife area to the west of  the building will be 
improved with wild flower meadow planting. The 
carparking area will be improved with wold flowers.

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

11.

Artist’s impression of the new entrance point (6.)

P
age 23



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement22 23

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-010

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

TOILET BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black stained timber doors

STUDIO BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black stained timber doors
glazed sliding doors 

STORE BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black metal roller shutters

Plan

South elevation East elevation North elevation West elevation

Plan

South elevation East elevation North elevation West elevation

South elevationEast elevationNorth elevation West elevation

Section

Plan

waste 
skip

shelving

bollar
d

compound 
fence

kitchenette

store

studio space

WCs, STUDIO and  STORAGE BARN

P
age 24



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement24 25

NEW ENTRANCE and COVERED SALES AREA

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-011

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

South elevation East elevation West elevation

Plan

ENCLOSED SALES AREA AND ENTRANCE

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
flat roof behind parapet with upstand rooflights
timber decked terrace with steel balustrade
glazed automatic doors
metal framed windows

EXTERNAL COVERED SALES AREA

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
'tree trunk' columns
steel frame saw tooth roof with polycarbonate covering

pergola 
area

new 
entrance

former external covered sales area 
now enclosed

new entrance 
porch

existing 
stair

East elevation North elevationSouth elevation

Plan

existing 
tree

planted 
courtyard

benches for bedding plant 
sales

tills

entrance

exit

new 
terrace

existing 
terrace

pergol
a

pergol
a

new 
rooflight

new flat 
roof

existing 
stair

P
age 25



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement26 27

NEW STAFF FACILITIES and LANDSCAPE STORE

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-012

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

NEW OFFICE BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
green roof with overhang and upstand rooflights
metal framed windows and doors

Plan

Long Section

South ElevationWest Elevation East Elevation

North Elevation

Note:

This building was granted planning permission in 2014
ref: HGY/2014/0555

NEW LANDSCAPE STORE 

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof 
black stained timber doors
stained timber glazed door and window 

Plan

North Elevation East Elevation South Elevation West Elevation

store office

office office office office office officeentrance and officestaff room

P
age 26



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement28 29

STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ
T 020 8675 2544
mail@dowjonesarchitects .com
www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-007

Planning

Captial Gardens

Elevations - Proposed

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

section 1

section 2

section 3

section 4

refurbished toiletsrefurbished studio building

main shop

refurbished studio building new entrancenew store building main shop new office building

main shop

new entrance

new covered external sales areashop extension with terrace above

new covered external sales area

refurbished toilets refurbished studio building

AN IDEA ABOUT CONSTRUCTION

Continuity

We are proposing that the new buildings have a 
clear identity as being a part of  a family of  buildings 
that will be made in a similar way and will all look 
the same.

We are proposing that the buildings are made 
from timber frame so they can be highly insulated 
and be constructed quickly.

We are proposing that they are clad in timber 
boarding so that a clear narrative link can be made 
with the site, its landscape setting, and the purpose 
of  the project and its genesis in the landscape.

This page shows images of  buildings that we 
think the new buildings would be like to give a 
flavour of  the high quality design intent.

Below is an elevation across the site which shows 
how all of  the individual elements we are proposing 
will come together through their common language 
of  construction and aesthetic and serve to unify the 
image of  the site.

Entrance

Omitting planks from the cladding provides greater degrees of 
transparency in the Swiss house - we imagine the new entrance 
to be like this

Covered sales area

The playful use of telegraph poles gives this external space a 
strong character - we imagine the covered sales area to be like 
this

High quality design

This award winning house on the Isle of Wight that we designed 
shows how the proposed buildings will be made

Covered Sales Area

Artist’s impression, showing the timber structure and openness.

Barn-like

This barn-like extension to a listed house in Cambridge that we 
designed will inform the new structures on the site

Language of timber boarding

This building uses timber boarding to create a common theme 
but to enable a range of uses for the spaces contained.

P
age 27



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement30 31

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Site Description

The application site is 0.9 hectare in size and 
accommodates a garden centre. The site is located 
in the western part of  Alexandra Park, an 80 hectare 
Green Flag park which surrounds Alexandra Palace. 
The site adjoins allotments along its western bound-
ary and the main route through the park on its east, 
Alexandra Palace Way. The site is well enclosed and 
surrounded by trees and high boundary walls. The 
site contains a large building within the centre of  
the site and car parking in the southern end.

The application site falls within land designated 
as Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) as well as land 
designated as Grade I Borough ecological impor-
tance. In addition the application site and park fall 
with a Conservation Area, given Alexandra Park’s 
designation as a historical park and given Alexandra 
Palace’s Grade II listed status. Alexandra Park is 
managed by Alexandra Palace Trust.

Key issue

We would see the key issue as being the impact 
this proposal will have on the MOL and the char-
acter of  the listed Alexandra Palace buildings and 
landscape.

The development proposed by this masterplan 
is not visible from the public real outside of  the 
boundary of  the Garden Centre as it either per-
tains to the extension of  existing buildings located 
towards the centre of  the site, or creates small new 
buildings that will not be visible from beyond the 
perimeter.

The stated aim of  this project is to improve the 
quality of  the buildings and landscape within the 
Garden Centre site, and to address issues of  visual 
clutter and an overall lack of  continuity of  the site, 
this key issue is addressed by the very nature of  the 
project.

We would therefore suggest that none of  the 
proposed development described in this masterplan 
will have an impact on the MOL or the setting of  
Alexandra Palace.

Use

There is no proposed change to the use of  the site 
nor the introduction of  new uses to the site.

The proposal is an extension to an existing out of  
town garden centre and will not have a effect on the 
vitality and viability of  a nearby town centre as it is 
supplying a unique service. 

Appearance and quality

This project will greatly improve the appearance 
and quality of  the buildings and landscape.

Layout

The bulk of  the development is proposed to 
existing buildings, and where new buildings are pro-
posed these have been placed so that they maintain 
the grain of  the development on site, and work with 
the forms already present on site.

Quantum - main building

The existing internal shop area is 910m2. This 
proposal will increase the area of  the main shop in 
two ways. 

The enclosure of  the existing covered sales area 
at the entrance will provide an additional 80m2  of  
interior space. 

The proposed new entrance will create an ad-
ditional 50m2.

This will be offset by the removal of  the existing 
conservatory of  31m2.

There will be a net increase in area of  99m2, or an 
additional 10.9%. 

Quantum - out buildings

The proposed storage barn has a floor area of  
76m2, but this is significantly less than the footprint 
of  the shipping containers that occupy this area of  
the site and account for 120m2.

The proposed office and store for the Landscape 
Team is 28m2, but this replaces a larger structure of  
55m2 currently in this location.

The proposed covered sales area for bedding 
plants will have a footprint of  150m2, but will 
replace an existing structure of  35m2, so a net gain 
of  115m2.

The studio and WC block are existing buildings 
and will not impact on the quantum of  development 
on site.

The staff  office building has approval already.

The scale of  the extensions are not big enough to 
effect the amenity and environment of  occupiers of  
adjacent and nearby properties. 

access

The proposal will not change the current access 
to he site. The garden centre is already readily ac-
cessible by a choice of  means of  transport. 

The proposal will improve disabled access to 
individual buildings.

sustainability

Making the Centre more sustainable and having 
a smaller carbon footprint is a key element of  this 
proposal. To achieve this, OR Consulting Engineers 
have been appointed to carry out a review of  the 
Centre, and to make proposals for how the new 
works can contribute to an overall reduction in car-
bon across the site. Their reports are attached.

Consultation

Pre-application advice was sought in 2016. The 
principle of  the proposal was considered not to 
impact on the ecological value or the historic inter-
est of  the Alexandra Palace Park. The proposal 
was considered acceptable and sensitive to the 
site’s setting, and would not affect the openness of  
the Metropolitan Open Land. The advice note is 
attached.

Since the pre-application advice, Capital Gardens 
have consultated with the Alexandra Palace Trust 
in order to develop the proposal in accordance with 
their Strategic Vision.

demolition within a conservation area

The demolition proposed is to the mix of  con-
temporary sheds, containers, and structures for the 
sale of  goods. The demolition of  these low quality 
buildings will address the visual clutter and lack 
of  continuity in the site, and help to enhance the 
characteristics of  the site.

Area Calculations

Total Existing Gross Internal Area: 1191m2

Shop: 910m2

Storage Containers: 120m2

Store to be replaced by Landscape Store: 55m2

Studio and WC block: 111m2

Brick outbuildings to be replaced by Office: 95m2

Total Gross Internal Area: 1364m2

Shop: 1009m2

Storage barn: 76m2

Landscape Store: 28m2

Studio and WC block: 111m2

Office: 140m2

Lighting

Site lighting will predominantly be maintained as 
existing. New low level lighting will be used to allow 
safe access to the new buildings where required.

P
age 28



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement32 33

SUSTAINABILITY

	
  Building  Services  
Environmental  Engineering  
Building  Acoustics  
Lighting  Design  

6  Gracechurch  Street  
London  
EC3V  0AT  

020  7183  5235  
info@orconsult.co.uk  
orconsult.co.uk  

Alexandra Palace Garden Centre 
Energy Strategy Note for the Extension of the Alexandra Palace Garden Centre  
29/04/2016 

	
  

Page 2 of 4 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

1   INTRODUCTION 

  
The Alexandra Palace Garden Centre is proposing to expand its facilities to pursue its goals of 
educating and encouraging the public to pursue horticulture, actively protect the environment 
and encourage bio-diversity. The Garden Centre proposes to: 
 

•   Extend and upgrade the main Garden Centre project; 
•   Create a new Administration Block to the east of the site; 
•   Refurbish the Store Building to create an education and activity centre; 
•   Refurbish the centre’s toilet block. 

 
 

2   CONSTRAINTS ON THE PROJECT 

	
  
The sensitive nature of the existing building and its site has constrained the adoption of some 
renewable technologies, for example: 
 

a.   The adoption of a ground source heat pump is considered to be inappropriate, as the 
Garden Centre do not own the grounds. 

b.   The adoption of a biomass boiler is considered to be inappropriate as: 
•   The height of the chimney required for the discharge of flue gasses from a biomass 

boiler is inappropriate for this site. 
•   The size and location required by a biomass boiler pellet store would undermine the 

scheme; 
•   The impact of biomass pellet deliveries would have an adverse impact on road 

traffic. 
c.   The installation of a wind turbine is inappropriate for this sensitive site. 
d.   The adoption of a combined heat and power plant is considered to be inappropriate as: 

•   The height of the flue required for the discharge of exhaust gasses is inappropriate 
for this site. 

•   The Garden Centre does not a year round requirement for heat.  
•   The Garden Centre site does not have adequate space to accommodate combined 

heat and power plant. 
 
3   PROPOSED ENERGY STRATEGY 

	
  
3.1 Existing Garden Centre Main Building 
	
  
The Garden Centre intends to upgrade and extend the existing building. These changes do not 
require any alterations to the external fabric of the building, however the Garden Centre has 
voluntarily committed to the replacement and upgrade of the building’s existing heating 
installations. 
 
The Garden Centre proposes to voluntarily: 

•   Install de-stratification fans to redirect heat collecting at high level within a space to low 
level. This serves to concentrate the heat within the occupied zone and results in a 
further estimated 10% reduction in the annual carbon emissions of the heating system. 

•   Install energy sub-meters to allow the monitoring, metering and targeting of energy 
consumption within the building. 

•   Install new low energy lighting installations. 

P
age 29



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement34 35

	
  

Page 3 of 4 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

•   Install water sub-meters. 
	
  
3.2 Proposed Garden Centre Extension 
	
  
The Garden Centre proposes to construct a new extension to the south west corner of the 
existing building. 
 
It is proposed to construct the extension in accordance with Part L2B 2014 as: 

•   The area of the extension is less than 25% of the total useful area of the existing Garden 
Centre; 

•   The extension construction will serve to partially wrap the façade of the existing Garden 
Centre, reducing heat losses. 

 
The Client proposes to voluntarily exceed the performance requirements of Approved Document 
Part L2B by: 

•   Super-insulating the external construction of the extension. 
•   Constructing the envelop / lining of the extension to achieve an air-tightness of 5m3/m2 

at 50Pa 
•   Implementing a passive cooling strategy to serve the space. 
•   Implementing a mixed mode ventilation strategy, utilising high efficiency heat recovery 

ventilation units in winter and additional passive ventilators in summer. 
•   Optimising the daylighting of the space. 
•   Installing low energy lighting. 
•   Installing absence and photocell lighting controls. 
•   Installing timeclock controls on display lighting. 
•   Installing energy sub-metering, to facilitate an energy metering, monitoring and targeting 

strategy. 
•   Installing water sub-metering, to facilitate the monitoring and management of water 

consumption. 
	
  
	
  
3.3 New Administration Building 
	
  

•   The Garden Centre proposes to construct a new Administration Building to the west of 
the site. 

•    
•   The Client proposes to voluntarily exceed the performance requirements of Approved 

Document Part L2A 2010 by 20% by: 
•    
•   Constructing the air tightness of the external fabric of the new Administration Building to 

5m3/m2 at 50Pa. 
•   Super-insulating the new external fabric of the Administration Building. 
•   Implementing a passive cooling strategy to the space. 
•   Implementing a mixed mode ventilation strategy (utilising high efficiency heat recovery 

ventilation units in winter and openable windows for passive ventilation in summer. 
•   Optimising the daylighting of the Administration Building. 
•   Implementing an energy efficient heating strategy. 
•   Installing low energy lighting. 
•   Installing absence and photocell lighting controls. 
•   Installing energy sub-metering to facilitate an energy metering, monitoring and targeting 

strategy. 
•   Installing photovoltaics. 

	
  

	
  

Page 4 of 4 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

	
  
	
  
3.4 Refurbishment of Store Building as Education and Activity Building 
	
  
The Garden Centre intends to upgrade and extend the existing Store Building to act as an 
Education and Activity Building. These changes do not require any alterations to the external 
fabric of the building, however the Garden Centre has voluntarily committed to the replacement 
and upgrade of the building’s existing heating, electrical and lighting installations. 
	
  
	
  
3.5 Refurbishment of Toilet Block 
	
  
The Garden Centre intends to upgrade and extend the existing Toilet Block. These changes do 
not require any alterations to the external fabric of the building, however the Garden Centre has 
voluntarily committed to the replacement and upgrade of the building’s: 
 

•   Electrical installations; 
•   Lighting installations;  
•   Water efficient sanitary fittings; 
•   Energy efficient hot water installation. 

 

P
age 30



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement36 37

	
  Building  Services  
Environmental  Engineering  
Building  Acoustics  
Lighting  Design  

6  Gracechurch  Street  
London  
EC3V  0AT  

020  7183  5235  
info@orconsult.co.uk  
orconsult.co.uk  

Alexandra Palace Garden Centre 
Sustainability Strategy Statement 
19/05/2016 

	
  

Page 2 of 6 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

1   OVERVIEW 

  
The Alexandra Palace Garden Centre is proposing to expand its facilities to pursue its goals of 
educating and encouraging the public to pursue horticulture, actively protect the environment 
and encourage bio-diversity. The Garden Centre proposes to: 

1.   Extend and upgrade the main Garden Centre project; 
2.   Create a new Administration Block to the east of the site; 
3.   Refurbish the Store Building to create an education and activity centre; 
4.   Refurbish the centre’s toilet block. 

  
 

2   APPROACH 

  
The Garden Centre is committed to minimizing the environmental impact of the project through 
the efficient design, procurement and handover of the project. 
 
The general approach of the project is to obviate the environmental impact of the project by: 
 

•   Re-using / upgrading existing accommodation wherever possible; 
•   Optimising the environmental performance of the building form of the proposed 

extensions. 
•   Optimising the passive performance of the extensions to the existing Garden Centre 

Building; 
•   Using the highly insulated new extension to partially wrap the external fabric of 

existing Garden Centre Building. 
•   Employing low carbon and renewable technologies, wherever possible. 
•   Preventing any noise pollution issues to surrounding areas. 
•   Preventing light pollution issues to surrounding areas. 
•   Designing the project to prevent an increase in surface water run-off from the 

buildings.  
•   Utilizing recycled building materials, where possible; 
•   Specifying recyclable materials, wherever possible; 
•   Employing construction management techniques to minimize the environmental 

impact of the building. 
•   Ensuring all contractors are trained to recognize opportunities for to minimize waste or 

recycle. 
•   Encouraging sustainable travel to the Garden Centre 
•   Train Garden Centre staff to operate the building efficiently. 
•   Introducing new displays and programmes within the new Garden Centre facilities to 

encourage the public to pursue horticulture actively protect the environment and 
encourage bio-diversity. 

 
 
3   LEGISLATIVE  AND  VOLUNTARY  OBLIGATIONS  

  
The project has sought to: 

•   Adhere to and in some cases exceed all building regulation obligations that seek to 
improve the environmental performance of the project; 

•   Reflect the requirements of Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (whist preserving the 
historic nature of the existing site and building); 

•   Reflect Haringey’s SPD on sustainable developments. 

P
age 31



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement38 39

	
  

Page 3 of 6 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

 
In particular, the project proposes to 

•   Exceed the carbon emission targets by 20%. 
•   Voluntarily install de-stratification fans within the main Garden Centre building to 

decrease gas consumption by 10%. 
•   Voluntarily install LED high bay lighting within the main Garden centre building to 

decrease building lighting loads by xx%. 
•   Voluntarily upgrade and refurbish the existing toilet building. 
•   Voluntarily upgrade and refurbish the external store building to act as an education 

and activity centre. 
 
  
4   DESIGNING  FOR  SUSTAINABILITY  

  
4.1 Introduction 
 
The design team shall seek to reduce the environmental impact of the project through the 
development of the design from intent to completion. 
 
4.2 Re-use of Existing Resources 
 
The project proposes to re-use, adapt, improve and extend the Garden Centre’s 
existing accommodation to reduce the embedded carbon footprint of the proposed 
development. 
 
In addition, the project proposed to re-use elements of the building’s existing services 
installations, i.e. re-using selected: 
 

•   Gas fired heaters; 
•   Electrical installations; 
•   Down lighter installations; 
•   Heating installations; 
•   Small power and data installations. 

 
4.3 Recycling of Existing Resources. 
 
The project has sought to inherently reduce its environmental impact by seeking to re-use 
items / materials wherever possible. Examples of such items include: 
 

•   Furniture; 
•   Joinery; 
•   Socket outlets; 
•   Data points; 
•   Electrical distribution and containment; 
•   Heaters, etc 

 
4.4 Designing to Reduce Environmental Impact 
 
The project has sought to reduce its environmental impact through the specification and 
detailing of materials and workmanship. It shall realise this goal, wherever possible, by: 
 
Specifying materials from sustainable sources (such as timber, etc.). 
 
Specifying recycled / re-used materials. 

	
  

Page 4 of 6 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

 
Specifying materials, wherever possible, that are suitable for re-use, such as: 
 

•   Steelwork; 
•   Mechanical fixings; 
•   Mechanical joints. 

 
Specifying equipment that is suitable for re-use, such as: 
 

•   Façade vents; 
•   Lighting; 
•   Electrical accessories; 
•   Electrical meters; 
•   Security equipment. 
•   Fire alarm panels. 
•   CCTV equipment. 

 
Specifying materials technologies that are suitable for recycling, i.e.: 
 

•   Timber; 
•   Copper / steel pipework (with mechanical joints); 
•   Cabling; 
•   Plasterboard; 
•   Metal studwork; 
•   Aluminium; 

 
Avoiding materials, such as concrete, where re-use has a greater environmental impact. 
 
4.5 Designing to Minimise Energy and Water Consumption 
 
The general approach of the project is to employ Lean, Mean or Green environmental 
strategies to minimise the energy and water consumption of the new extension and 
administration building. 
 
Lean is defined as reducing the building’s water and energy consumption by improving the 
passive performance of the building elements/construction.  
 
The project has sought to: 
 

•   Optimise the thermal performance of the external envelope of the proposed 
extensions;  

•   Improve the thermal performance of the existing Garden Centre by wrapping the east 
façade at ground level with a new insulated Winter Garden construction; 

•   Optimise the air tightness of the proposed extensions;  
•   Optimise the opportunities for daylighting to the extensions or refurbished areas;  
•   Optimise the thermal shading performance of new glazed elements;  
•   Implement sustainable urban drainage (SUDS) measures; 
•   Introduce water efficient sanitary fittings. 

 
Mean is defined as meeting building demands efficiently by utilising efficient technologies and 
energy management practices to improve the performance of the following systems installations: 
 

•   Ventilation;  
•   Heating;  

P
age 32



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement40 41

	
  

Page 5 of 6 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

•   Lighting;  
•   Hot water; 
•   Catering 
•   IT/small power;  
•   Sub metering and energy management.  

 
Green is defined as the utilisation of renewable/low carbon energy sources to provide the low 
carbon generation of:  
 

•   Heat;  
•   Hot Water;  
•   Electricity.  

 
It is proposed to introduce the following renewable/low carbon technologies to reduce the 
Garden Centre’s consumption of energy: 
 

•   Photo voltaics;  
•   LED lighting; 
•   Lighting controls 
•   Heat recovery ventilation units; 
•   De-stratification fans; 

 
4.6 Designing for Low Water Usage 
 
The project has sought to inherently reduce its environmental impact by employing water 
efficient technologies / strategies, such as low flow WCs, taps, showers, etc. 
 
 
5   TRAINING  OF  STAFF  

The project shall seek to reduce its environmental impact through the site induction process 
required for all Contractors. The induction process shall be required to include a section on 
environmental issues, which covers subjects such as: 
 
The importance of avoiding waste to the environment; 

•   The importance of recycling; 
•   The importance of integration between trades; 
•   The avoidance of materials / substances that are hazardous to health or the 

environment; 
•   Details of the site waste management plan; 
•   The importance of the quality of Operation and Maintenance information for the 

energy efficient handover and operation of the project. 
 
 
6   CONSTRUCTION  MANAGEMENT  

 
The project shall seek to reduce its environmental impact through the management of the 
environmental risks involved with the design and construction process. It seeks to achieve 
these goals, wherever possible, through: 
 

•   The design, specification and procurement of materials / equipment to reduce their 
environmental impact; 

•   The pre-fabrication of building elements; 

	
  

Page 6 of 6 

	
  

Building Services 

Environmental Engineering 

Building Acoustics 
Lighting Design 

6 Gracechurch Street 

London 
EC3V 0AT 

020 7183 5235 

info@orconsult.co.uk 
orconsult.co.uk 

•   The avoidance of the use of deleterious or hazardous materials; 
•   The avoidance of the use of paints, solvents, adhesives, etc. that are harmful to the 

environment; 
•   The avoidance of the use of ozone depleting refrigerants; 
•   The development and maintenance of emergency procedures for effectively dealing 

with significant hazards where they exist and to limit their risk to health and the 
environment. 

•   The procurement of materials to reduce packaging; 
•   The planning of site deliveries to reduce the carbon emissions of transportation; 
•   The planning of construction works to minimise the number of trades required; 
•   The adoption of trades whose materials / products facilitate re-use / recycling in the 

future; 
•   The requirement for all Contractor’s to demonstrate a commitment to environmental 

management; 
•   The use of highly skilled specialist sub-contractors from the Main Contractor's supply 

chain to minimise wastage; 
•   The co-ordination and integration of trades, to minimise project wastage; 
•   The organisation of the site and site compound to facilitate recycling and reduce the 

frequency of collections necessary (and hence their carbon impact); 
•   The implementation and communication of a site waste management plan; 
•   The production of a comprehensive operation and maintenance manual, to facilitate 

the efficient handover and operation of equipment / facilities; 
•   The creation of a soft landing process, to facilitate the efficient handover and 

operation of all equipment and facilities. 
 
 
7   WASTE  MANAGEMENT  PLAN  

 
The project shall seek to reduce its environmental impact through the implementation of a 
site waste management plan. 
 
A site waste management plan seeks to: 
 

•   Promote the economic usage of construction materials; 
•   Encourage construction techniques that minimise wastage (to minimise disposal to 

landfill); 
•   Ensure that all waste is processed to ensure re-use and recycling, wherever possible. 
•   Ensure all non-re-usable / non-recyclable waste is disposed of responsibly. 
•   Ensure all hazardous waste is disposed of responsibly; 
•   Monitor and report on the processing of waste. 

 
 
8   TRANSPORT  

 
The Garden Centre seeks to minimize the environmental impact of staff and visitors travelling 
to the site. The Garden Centre seeks to encourage the use of public transport, bicycles, etc. to 
minimize the carbon emissions associated with travel. 
The Garden Centre will offer increased cycle storage to visitors as part of this development. 
 
	
  
	
  

P
age 33



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement42 43

1

Date of site meeting: 22/08/2016 
 
Site Address:  Capital Gardens, Alexandra Palace 
 
Attendees: 
 
Matthew Gunning – Team Leader/ Development Management 
Tobias Finlayson – Planning Officer 
Applicant & architect 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The application  site  is 0.9 hectare  in  size and accommodates a garden centre. The 
site is located in the western part of Alexandra Park, an 80 hectare Green Flag park 
which  surrounds  Alexandra  Palace.  The  site  adjoins  allotments  along  its  western 
boundary and  the main  route  through  the park on  its east, Alexandra Palace Way. 
The site is well enclosed and surrounded by trees and high boundary walls. The site 
contains a large building within the centre of the site and car parking in the southern 
end of the site. 
 
The application site falls within land designated as Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) as 
well  as  land designated  as Grade  I  Borough ecological  importance.  In  addition  the 
application  site  and  park  fall  with  a  Conservation  Area,  given  Alexandra  Park’s 
designation as a historical park and given Alexandra Palace’s Grade  II  listed status. 
Alexandra Park is managed by Alexandra Palace Trust. 
 
2. Overview of proposal 
 
The proposal is rationalise the existing accommodation on site by:   
  

 extending the existing building; 
 removing ancillary outbuildings; 
 refurbishing existing outbuildings; 
 generally improve the appearance of the site as a whole; 
 improving the sustainability of the buildings on site. 

 
Relevant Planning History 
 
HGY/1998/0623  ‐  Erection  of  extension  and  refurbishment  including  additional 
retaining wall, reseeding of wild life area and the removal area, roof terrace seating, 
new  retractable  canopy,  new  cafe  and  display  areas,  new  entrance  door,  outdoor 
seating of a pergola.‐ Approved 15/12/1998 
 
HGY/2011/1161  ‐  Erection  of  a  free‐standing  structure  for  selling  cut  flowers  – 
Approved 12/08/2011 
 

PRE‐APPLICATION ADVICE NOTE ‐ PRE/2016/0298 
 

2

HGY/2014/0555  ‐  Replacement  of  existing  stores  with  a  new  single  storey  timber 
frame office with green roof and timber cladding – Approved 17/04/2014 
 
3. Comments on the scheme 
 
Principle of Development 
 
With  regard  to  the  principle  of  the  proposal,  Saved  UDP  Policy  (2006)  OS4  refers 
specifically to the Alexandra Palace and Park and states that proposals for Alexandra 
Park and Palace should: 
 
a) conserve and enhance the habitat and ecological value of the Park. 
b) preserve and enhance the special architectural and historic interest and setting of 
the Palace and the historic form and layout of the park land. 
c) facilitate the restoration of the fabric of the building. 
d)  enhance  the  outdoor  recreational,  leisure  and  sports  opportunities  within  the 
Park,  having  regard  to  the  needs  of  a  wide  range  of  users  including  the  need  for 
passive recreation. 
e) provide a range of uses for the Palace, which complement the outdoor activities in 
the  Park  and  complement  as  far  as  possible  the  function  of  Wood  Green 
Metropolitan Town Centre.  It is considered that the Palace should be used primarily 
for a mixture of arts, cultural and entertainment, educational, sport and recreation 
and  other  uses  within  the  D1  (non‐residential  institutions)  and  D2  (assembly  and 
leisure) Use Classes. Within the existing curtilage of the Palace some ancillary use for 
food  and  drink  (use  class  A3),  Business  (Use  Class  B1),  residential,  hotel  and 
conference purposes may be acceptable as part of a mixed‐use scheme. 
f) not involve unacceptable levels of traffic that cannot be accommodated on site. 
g) protect the amenity of local residential properties.  

 
The principle of the proposal is considered to be in line with this policy and will not 
impact on the ecological value or the historic interest of the Alexandra Palace Park. 
The  proposal  would  serve  to  improve  the  recreational  and  leisure  value  of  this 
current  facility.   The  trip generation and parking generated  in association with  this 
facility is not expected to significantly change.  
 
The current  retail  activities  (horticulture/ garden centre use) would be  required  to 
remain the same with the improved/ extended facility on site.  
 
Impact on Metropolitan Open Land (MOL 
 
The site falls within land designated as Metropolitan Open Land (MOL), London Plan 
Policy  7.17  states  that  the  strongest  protection  should  be  given  to  London’s 
Metropolitan  Open  Land  and  inappropriate  development  refused,  except  in  very 
special circumstances, giving the same level of protection as in the Green Belt. Local 
Plan  Policy  SP13  ‘Open  Space  and  Biodiversity’  requires  new  developments  to 
protect  and  improve Haringey’s  open  spaces  and  states  that  all  new development 

P
age 34



Capital Gardens Design & Access Statement44 45

3

shall protect and enhance the borough’s Green Belt, designated Metropolitan Open 
Land from inappropriate development.   
 
Paragraph  89  of  the  (National  Planning  Policy  Framework)  NPPF  lists  the  types  of 
development which are appropriate in the Green Belt and MOL.   These include the 
provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, as long as it 
preserves the openness of the Green Belt.   
 
The current proposals would upgrade  the existing  facilities  to  this  long established 
garden  centre  can  continue  to  operate.  The works  here  can  serve  to  enhance  the 
appearance  of  the  site,  to  better  integrate  the  buildings  into  its  surroundings  and 
overall will not affect the openness of the Metropolitan Open Land. 
 
Siting and Design 
 
As  set  out  in  the Masterplan  document  the  aim  of  the  project  is  to  improve  the 
quality of the buildings and landscape within the Garden Centre site, and to address 
issues of visual clutter and an overall lack of continuity of the site. There will be a net 
increase in floor area of 99m2, or an additional 10.9%. 
 
While  there  is  additional  increase  to  the buildings on  site  the additional  volume  is 
placed  sensitively  so as  to maintain and  respect  the current grain and  form of  the 
development on site.  
 
It  is noted that the main garden centre buildings were built  in the 1980’s and then 
partly  re‐furbished  by  Capital  Gardens  in  1998.  A  number  of  buildings  on  site  are 
seen  as  ‘worn  out,  ugly  or  in  the  wrong  position’.  Some  of  the  structures  are 
proposed to be removed with others refurbished to given a new lease of life to this 
facility on site.  
 
The retained building will be clad with timber boarding so that a sense of a shared 
design  theme  is  achieved  across  the  site  with  improvement  to  the  overall 
appearance  of  the  site.  The  various  components  and  works  as  set  out  in  the 
Masterplan are considered to be acceptable.  
 
The proposal also includes landscaping to the site to improve the quality of the space 
around the buildings. The improvement to the wildlife area to the west of the main 
building, with wild flower meadow planting, is particularly welcomed.  
 
Overall the works here are considered acceptable and sensitive to the site’s setting. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The  following  information  will  be  required  for  registration  of  the  planning 
application in respect of this site.   
1.  Standard  application  form  (three  copies  plus  original  unless  submitted 

electronically) 

4

2.  Location  plan  on  an  up  to  date map  at  an  identified  standard metric  scale 
(typically  1:1250  or  1:2500  to  fit  onto  A4  or  A3  paper)  with  the  red  line 
including all land necessary to carry out the proposed development and blue 
line for any other land owned by the applicant 

3.  Site plan – direction of North, proposed development  in relation to the site 
boundaries  with  written  dimensions  (and  public  rights  of  way,  trees,  hard 
surfacing and boundary treatment where relevant)  typically 1:500 or 1:200 

4.  Ownership certificate and notices 
5.  Agricultural land declaration 
6.  Fee 
7.  Fully  annotated  and  scaled  (1:50  or  1:100)  drawings  showing,  floor  plans, 

elevations of the existing and proposed buildings as well as drawings showing 
site  sections.  Please  note  that  Haringey  requires  all  applications  to  have  a 
scale  bar  and  all  proposed  plans/elevations  require  one  significant 
dimension. This is to ensure that the Planning Officer can accurately measure 
dimensions using measuring software.   

8.  CIL  liability  form – Note Mayoral  CIL  rate  of  £35 would  apply  in  respect  of 
additional floorspace. 

9.  Design & Access Statement. 
10.  Planning Statement (can be included in Design & Access Statement) 
11.  Landscaping plan. 
12.  Details of new external lighting. 
 
For further information please see the Council’s Validation Checklist.   

INFORMATIVE 
 
Please  be  advised  that  this  response  is  given  at  officer  level  and  does  not  form  a 
formal  response  or  decision  of  the  Council  with  regard  to  future  planning 
application(s) or other formal approaches.   The views expressed above are given in 
good faith, to the best of ability, and without prejudice to the formal consideration 
of any future planning application, which will be subject to formal consultation and 
ultimately decided on by the Council.   
 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-001

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4

Masterplan

1. existing storage containers - to be removed
2. existing waste skip - to be removed
3. existing storage sheds - to be removed
4. existing wc building - to be refurbished
5. existing studio building - to be refurbished
6. existing covered sales area - to be enclosed
7. existing entrance point - to be removed
8. existing pavilion - to be removed
9. existing covered sales area - to be replaced
10. existing storage sheds - to be replaced
11. existing store - to be replaced

5

6

7

8

9

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 1

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 2

section 3

se
c

ti
o

n
 4

10

10

10

11

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

02.01.18

1:200

206-P-002

Planning

Captial Gardens

Roof Plan - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

Masterplan

1. existing cafe terrace

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 1

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 2

section 3

se
c

ti
o

n
 4

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

02.01.18

1:200

206-P-003

Planning

Captial Gardens

Elevations - Existing

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

section 1

section 2

section 3

section 4

studio building toiletsstudio building toilets

studio building main shoptoilets

studio building covered sales area at entrancestorage containers and skips main shop storage sheds

main shop

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

02.01.18

1:1250 @ A1

206-P-004

Planning

Captial Gardens

Location Plan

-

A
le

xa
nd

ra
 P

al
ac

e
 W

ay

Alexandra Palace

Site Boundary

Location Plan

25m 50m 75m 100m0

1:1250 @ A1

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-005

Planning

Captial Gardens

Site Plan

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1
2

3

4

5

6

8

7 9 10

11

14

13

12

Masterplan

1. new waste skip location
2. new storage shed
3. refurbished toilets
4. refurbished studio building
5. revised access to studio
6. wildlife reserve relandscaped
7. new entrance to shop
8. existing sales area enclosed
9. new sales area
10. covered external sales area
11. courtyard
12. new fence to create staff compound
13. new landscape store
14. new offices (planning permission HGY/2014/0555 ) 

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 1

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 2

section 3x

se
c

ti
o

n
 4

existing building 

existing building refurbished 

new building 

existing permission 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-006

Planning

Captial Gardens

Roof Plan

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1

2

3

4 5

Masterplan

1. new rooflights to existing shop roof
2. new rooflights to flat roof over newly enclosed sales area
3. existing terrace
4. new extended terrace
5. new pergola roof
6. roof to covered external sales area

6

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 1

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 2

section 3x

se
c

ti
o

n
 4

5

existing building 

existing building refurbished 

new building 

existing permission 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:200

206-P-007

Planning

Captial Gardens

Elevations - Proposed

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

section 1

section 2

section 3

section 4

refurbished toiletsrefurbished studio building

main shop

refurbished studio building new entrancenew store building main shop new office building

main shop

new entrance

new covered external sales areashop extension with terrace above

new covered external sales area

refurbished toilets refurbished studio building

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-010

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

TOILET BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black stained timber doors

STUDIO BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black stained timber doors
glazed sliding doors 

STORE BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof with flush rooflights
black metal roller shutters

Plan

South elevation East elevation North elevation West elevation

Plan

South elevation East elevation North elevation West elevation

South elevation
East elevation

North elevation
West elevation

Section

Plan

waste 
skip

shelving

bollar
d

compound 
fence

kitchenette

store

studio space

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-011

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

South elevation East elevation West elevation

Plan

ENCLOSED SALES AREA AND ENTRANCE

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
flat roof behind parapet with upstand rooflights
timber decked terrace with steel balustrade
glazed automatic doors
metal framed windows

EXTERNAL COVERED SALES AREA

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
'tree trunk' columns
steel frame saw tooth roof with polycarbonate covering

pergola 
area

new 
entrance

former external covered sales area 
now enclosed

new entrance 
porch

existing 
stair

East elevation North elevationSouth elevation

Plan

existing 
tree

planted 
courtyard

benches for bedding plant 
sales

tills

entrance

exit

new 
terrace

existing 
terrace

pergol
a

pergol
a

new 
rooflight

new flat 
roof

existing 
stair

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATUS:

10 Station Parade, Balham High Road, London, SW12 9AZ

T 020 8675 2544

mail@dowjonesarchitects .com

www.dowjonesarchitects .com

18.01.02

1:100

206-P-012

Planning

Captial Gardens

Building plans and elevations

-
1m

metric scale for 1:100

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

1m

metric scale for 1:200

2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m0

NEW OFFICE BUILDING

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
green roof with overhang and upstand rooflights
metal framed windows and doors

Plan

Long Section

South ElevationWest Elevation East Elevation

North Elevation

Note:

This building was granted planning permission in 2014

ref: HGY/2014/0555

NEW LANDSCAPE STORE 

materials:
black stained timber boarded walls
dark slate roof 
black stained timber doors
stained timber glazed door and window 

Plan

North Elevation East Elevation South Elevation West Elevation

store office

office office office office office officeentrance and officestaff room

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Alexandra Palace Garden Centre Planning Application HGY/2018/0394
	Garden Centre Planning application
	Garden Centre design & access statement
	Garden Centre plan existing  001
	Garden Centre plan existing 002
	Garden Centre plan existing 003
	Garden Centre plan existing 004
	Garden Centre plan proposed 005
	Garden Centre plan proposed 006
	Garden Centre plan proposed 007
	Garden Centre plan proposed 010
	Garden Centre plan proposed 011
	Garden Centre plan proposed 012


